
Meeting Bath City Forum

Date Tuesday, 27th March, 2018

Time 6.00  - 8.00 pm

Venue Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath

Subject

1.  Welcome and Apologies Chair 5 mins

Cllr Colin Blackburn (Chair) will open the meet and introduce the 
new co-opted members to the forum. 

2.  Minutes and matters arising from the meeting on 17.01.18 Chair 5 mins

3.  Funding recommendations from CIL and CEF (Pages 13 - 
22)

Cllr Rob 
Appleyard

15 mins

An update will be provided to the forum on the funding 
recommendations that have been made by the Neighbourhood 
CIL for Bath and the Community Empowerment Fund.

4.  The Recreation Ground Stadium Update Tarquin 
McDonald

25 mins

Tarquin McDonald, Managing Director of Bath Rugby will 
provide an update and take questions on the progress of the 
Stadium for Bath project.

5.  Governance Options for the City of Bath Andy 
Thomas and 
Maria Lucas

60 mins

A short presentation on the Governance Options for the City of 
Bath will be given. The forum will then have an opportunity to 
ask questions. 

6.  AOB All 10 mins

Date of Future Meeting: 
Tuesday, 15 May 2018 
Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath



This page is intentionally left blank



Note of the meeting of the Bath City Forum
held on Wednesday, 17th January, 2018

in Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath

Meeting Attendance

In Attendance
Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones
Councillor Rob Appleyard
Ashley Ayre
Councillor Colin Blackburn
Jeremy Boss
Amanda Cameron
Councillor Anthony Clarke
David Dixon
Roger Driver
Luke John Emmett
Councillor Andrew Furse
Councillor Bob Goodman
Mark Hayward
Sir Peter Heywood
Michael Hill
Bryn Jones
Robin Kerr
Gareth Lloyd
Tracey Long
Councillor Michelle O'Doherty
Rosie Phillips
Mike Plows
Stephen Quinton
Councillor Joe Rayment
Leslie Redwood
Residents
Adam Reynolds
Councillor Dine Romero
Ian Savigar
Councillor Shaun Andrew 
Stephenson-McGall
Andy Thomas
Councillor Karen Warrington
Virginia Williamson

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Apologies Received from
Caroline Kay
Steve Kendall
Penny McKissock
Councillor Lin Patterson
Councillor Peter Turner

1.   Welcome and Apologies 

Councillor Colin Blackburn welcomed all attendees and apologies were recorded. 

2.   Minutes from the meeting of 27 November 2017 

Robin Kerr disputed the minutes of the last meeting.

The minutes stated: “Robin Kerr felt that the note included from the Fire Service regarding the 
number of inspections carried out on party house was not sufficient.”  
What was also said was: “The October report needs to be substantially improved with respect 
to ‘Party Houses’, providing detail of the number of inspections which have taken place and 
what remedial action has been considered necessary in order to bring the danger in these 
potential death-traps within the kind of risk considered acceptable in hotels and guest houses.” 
 
An update was agreed. 

All other aspects were agreed as an accurate record of the meeting and were agreed by 
Jeremy Boss and seconded by Councillor Joe Rayment.

3.   Fire Service Update 

Bath Fire Station Update

Station Manager, Gareth Lloyd explained that the firefighters are running their winter safety 
campaign.
 Home visits to the elderly and vulnerable are being carried out.
 Three nights have been spent on the towpaths with community resilience volunteers to 

educate young people that it’s not the best placed to walk if you’ve been drinking. Work 
continues with both of the universities in Bath.

 Work has been taking place with food banks to meet vulnerable people living in the 
community so that visits can be arranged to check their fire safety, and advice can be given 
on property issues. It is hoped that this work will extend to soup kitchens. 

 Requests have been made to boat owners to attend safety meetings at the George Public 
House in Bathampton. This work will include outreach workers for Julian House and advice 
on fire detection devices. 

Question 1 – Cllr Dine Romero – Does the work with the university students extend to Bath 
College and school sixth forms?
Response – There are not presently the links that the Fire Service would like to see in place. 
Work on river safety is aimed at 17-21 year olds and attendance at fresher’s events does take 
place.  Social media is being used as one method of getting the messages out. 

Page 4



Question 2 – Cllr Andy Furse – How are interventions taking place with vulnerable people 
affected by rouge landlords?
Response – Work is ongoing with the Student Community Partnership and the River Safety 
Group. An online blog is regularly updated.
Andy added that Bath College would welcome visits from Avon Fire & Rescue. 

Question 3 – Cllr Shaun Stephenson-McGall – What is the position of the Fire service in 
relation to the squeeze from funding cuts?
Response – The budget proposals go to The Fire Authority in February. The service 
commitment from the front end responders remains 24 hour / 7 day a week operation. 

Question 4 - Cllr Shaun Stephenson-McGall asked how the fire service deals with the issue of 
washing machine / tumble dryers which are potential “death traps”.
Response – The Fire Service keeps an eye on product recalls and issues alerts for the public.

Question 5 – Robin Kerr – Could a response be given on fire safety around party houses. The 
Council are holding a scrutiny day in February on this topic. Brighton and Hove Council are 
ahead of us in dealing with these issues, East Sussex Fire Service has reported that they have 
powers to shut down premises.

Stephen Quinton, Group Manager – Risk Reduction responded:
  

 The fire service does have a responsibility to carry out fire inspections at party houses, 
including Air BnB lets - “Party houses are regulated”. It was stated that there no 
inspection issues that are “too difficult”.   

 Sleeping accommodation is a priority for fire inspections. 
 Named unlicensed party houses have been added to its list for checks. There were no 

specific complaints about any of those properties and there is no evidence to suggest 
that party houses are any more dangerous than licensed premises.

 28 properties have been inspected, 5 turned out not to be party houses. None have 
received any enforcement action. Only one was assessed above level 3 of fire hazard (= 
advisory), requiring addition of some door closers and smoke alarms. 

 A single exception was assessed as level 5 (= the worst) and would have been closed 
down that night, had not the owner managed to install a wireless detection system 
before the deadline.

 There are 320 Air BnB’s advertised in B&NES area which provide a challenge as the 
only way to contact them is to book a room or email them.

 There is nothing to stop owners from illegally blocking or removing fire safety measures 
(e.g. door closers) once the inspectors have gone. 

 There are also 8,000 businesses in B&NES, and a number of care homes, which are a 
bigger priority for the fire services.

 A premise above a shop was facing prosecution, on return to the property the landlord 
had installed a fire protection system that covered the issues that had been picked up in 
the initial inspection.

 Once an inspection is carried out the premise is added to a plan but the reality is that a 
long time passes before a return visit is carried out. 

 The fire service has only two fire safety officers to cover B&NES, this is why a risk-
based fire safety assessment system is run.

Page 5



 It was disappointing to see a reference to Grenfell in relation to party house fire safety in 
Bath. We will be doing everything in our power to keep you updated.”

Cllr Rob Appleyard felt that the feedback that had been provided was of a high quality and 
extremely useful. The language that is used future discussion needs to be responsible and 
measured. 

Robin Kerr added his thanks to the information provided. 

4.   Police Update - Handout 

The Police were unable to attend this meeting, a handout was provided covering the latest 
crime statistics. 

5.   Modern Community Libraries 

Ian Savigar introducing an update on modern libraries and explained that the council is 
currently in the “engagement and design” phase of the plans for Bath Central Library.

Tracey Long presented on Branch libraries
 There are a maximum of 16 per cent of active library users, who have registered, in any 

area in B&NES. However, the council realises more people than that actually use libraries.
 There is a high usage of Bath Central Library but little usage of the mobile library.
 A large proportion of residents in Weston and Newbridge use their local library.
 Some 265,000 people took out books from Bath Central Library in the 2016 financial with 

192,000 using the online select and collect option.
 The mobile library bus is visited more at some stops than others, it is hoped that we will be 

able to transfer some of the libraries over to the community and we want to see enhanced 
services.

 The five branch libraries could be managed by a community body, there has been some 
interest and the council has a “package of support” to help people take over running the 
libraries.

There are three models for running a community library:

OPTION C 
Independent Stock Community Run Library would see:
 Running and staffing costs all funded by local group 
 Book/issues and membership rules (including fees and charges) determined at local level 
 IT equipment/support and maintenance, Wi-Fi, printing and any other systems funded by 

local group 
 Income from local sales and services retained by local group 
 B&NES decommissioned book stock plus any local sourced stock 
 Professional support from B&NES available through networking and training events 
 Eligible for one off Community Library Start Up Grant

OPTION B 
B&NES stock only Community Run Library would see:
 Running and staffing costs all funded by local group 

Page 6



 Book/issues and membership rules (including fees and charges) determined at local level 
for rotated stock 

 IT equipment/support and maintenance, Wi-Fi, printing and any other systems funded by 
local group 

 Income from local sales and services retained by local group 
 B&NES identified rotated book stock plus any local sourced stock 
 Professional support from B&NES available through networking and training events 
 Eligible for one off Community Library Start Up Grant 

OPTION A 
B&NES and Consortium Stock Community Run Library would see:
Running and staffing costs all funded by local group 
Catalogue book stock and professional support provided by B&NES 
Part of Libraries West Consortium stock and reservations network 
IT equipment/support and maintenance, Wi-Fi, printing and any other systems funded by local 
group 
All loan related fees, fines and charges income retained by B&NES 
Income from local sales and services retained by local group 
Click and collect point for core Library stock on Libraries West Consortium system but any 
related fees, fines and charges income retained by B&NES for consortium system orders 
Eligible for one off Community Library Start Up Grant 

Library support and funding 
 The council will help community groups devise a business case that is sustainable and that 

was grant funding available.
 The council will set up an example of Option A so that people could come along and have a 

look at this model.
 Conversations in Weston and Moorland Road have started, groups in other areas of Bath 

come forward with any ideas they may have.

Roger Driver asked if there was a way to estimate the number of people who use libraries in 
ways other than taking out books, e.g., using wifi and computers for social welfare applications.
Response – The footfall and books borrowed can be measured but it is difficult to categorise 
other uses in the smaller branch libraries. The aim is to fit into other spaces and have places 
with mixed resources that fit the community needs.  
Roger requested that what information is available on the use of other services be made 
shared with the forum/communities. 

Cllr Shaun Andrew Stephenson-McGall asked whether it was achievable for a community to 
run a library for 20-30 hours a week on a volunteer basis.
Response - It’s so surprising how many people want to do this and it works very well nationally. 
We already have examples of high numbers of volunteers in Saltford, Bishop Sutton and at a 
national level. Bath has a large student population that could help.

Cllr Joe Rayment sought assurance that the principle of a library would be maintained and that 
you would be able to sit there for as long as you liked without buying anything. The word 
“library sales” in the presentation did not feel right. Joe felt that there was the question of why 
would anyone run a library if they weren’t going to make money out of it?

Page 7



Cllr Karen Warrington, Cabinet Member for Policy and Transformation explained that some 
groups might want to generate a revenue stream, but one size does not fit all. The request is 
that communities will now contact Council Officers to build on established ideas or show where 
there is support for new options.  

6.   New Electoral Arrangements - Local Government Boundary Commission Draft 
Proposals 

Jeremy Boss gave a Local Government Boundary Commission Draft Proposals short 
presentation about Local Government Boundary Commission Draft Proposals which would see 
changes to ward boundaries in Bath.  Jeremy felt that the draft proposals do not meet the 
stated objectives and principles. Whoever has put together these proposals has done a good 
job in terms of cutting the number of councillors to the wanted 59 (from 66), but a “lousy job” in 
terms of reflecting local communities and there has to be a better understanding of local 
knowledge.

The University of Bath is distorting the position for the South of Bath. The proposed ward for 
Claverton Down has no real basis. 

Jeremy recommended that the Bath City Forum ask the Commission to revisit its proposals for 
Bath by: 
 Staying within the City boundary 
 Placing a greater emphasis on community identity and cohesion (noting submissions from 

local groups and residents)
 Reconsidering the position for the University / Claverton Down 
 Seeking for wards to be predominantly with 2 Cllrs 

Bryn Jones from Lambridge ward said the proposals meant there would be seven single-
member wards in the north of Bath. (Full details of these representations are included in the 
minute papers)
“You’d have to put all your money on one horse.”
He said Fairfield Park would disappear into Walcot. 
“This is an example of a lack of respect for community integrity in the Lambridge area.”

Cllr Rob Appleyard said: “We need to build from the bottom upwards. It is about communities.”

Jeremy Boss thought the forum should go back to the Boundary Commission and ask them to 
take better account of communities.

Cllr Rayment said he thought the main point should be about the overall boundary of the city as 
the split between parished and unparished areas would cause problems.

Cllr Anthony Clarke felt that it was virtually impossible now for politicians to have an effect on 
the outcome as they had already had there opportunity.
Cllr Dine Romero disagreed on this point as local parties can still contribute.

Virginia Williamson explained that Bear Flat would be split through the heart of the community 
by the new ward boundaries proposed. Virginia had looked at the notes on the website on how 
communities should respond and where resident associations are set up representation is 

Page 8



easier. The areas without a group will need some level of help from their Ward Councillors in 
making their representation.

Cllr Shaun Stephenson-McGall had no issue if the whole of the authority had single-member 
wards because it’s very easy for members that contribute very little to hide behind a good 
member covering the same ward. 
Cllr Shaun Stephenson-McGall was not bothered by changes to the City boundary. 
The university issue is link to national registration on 1 December, a date which means 
university students are not captured. 
The changing ward boundaries do not, ultimately, matter. It just meant wards would have to 
work on cross-boundary matters, as they do now.

Cllr Joe Rayment said the forum represents the unparished area of B&NES, so keeping the city 
boundary is good for the future of the forum.

Cllr Andrew Furse said 59 was not necessarily the right number of councillors
and remained neutral on whether one and two-member wards, this does however need to be 
driven by communities 

Cllr Bob Goodman felt that the proposals have got this badly wrong, the Bath boundary needs 
to be kept intact and communities need to go back with their concerns
Cllr Bob Goodman explained that Harry Patch, who is the most famous person in Combe 
Down, would no longer be in Combe Down if this were to go ahead.

The forum voted that they were in favour of a letter being written to the Electoral Boundary 
Commission. (17 - Yes / Nil - No)

The forum voted on three points that they wished to have included in the letter being written to 
the Electoral Boundary Commission

(i) Staying within the City boundary (Yes - 15 / No - 0)
(ii) Placing a greater emphasis on community identity and cohesion (noting submissions 

from local groups and residents) (Yes - 17 / No - 0) 
(iii) Seeking for wards to be predominantly with 2 Cllrs (Yes - 12 / No - 3)

7.   Working Group Recommendations for CIL and CEF 

Cllr Appleyard went through a list of funding recommendations from the Bath City Forum 
Working Group.

Community Empowerment Funding

 £6,000 for a shelter at Brickfields Park in Westmoreland
 £5,200 for training and start-up costs for a group of Bath Clean Air Champions to tackle 

vehicle anti-idling
 £15,000 for Bath Comedy Festival 2018

An application for the Bath City Brand was not recommended. 

Page 9



Bath Neighbourhood CIL Funding

 £7,500 for Bath Festival of Nature 2018
 £3,500 towards Bathscape Walking Festival 2018
 £25,000 towards the protection and restoration of Free Fields near Foxhill.

An application for speed signage in Bathwick/Claverton has been deferred as further 
information needs to be considered before a final decision can be given.
Councillor Joe Rayment felt that this scheme is important as the road is dangerous; he added 
that that this should scheme should not be dismissed if the University of Bath are not willing to 
be involved.
Councillor Colin Blackburn explained this application has now been differed and will come back 
once the working group have looked at this with the additional information provided.

Virginia Williamson had concerns that there may be differences in the wording on the website 
and in the criteria guidance document for the Community Empowerment Fund. Virginia also felt 
that the application form needs clearer guidance around the need for a forum signatory and a 
clearer way to show the breakdown of costs included in the application.
Council Officers will review the website; criteria document and application form. Amendments 
will be made if required.

8.   Forum Development and Forward Plans 

Luke John Emmett, requested to speak to the forum about community engagement (the full 
speech is included in the minutes papers).
Luke said 90 per cent of the B&NES residents are white and British and that most of the forum 
members are “white, male and middle class”.
He asked whether the remaining 10 per cent of B&NES residents were properly represented, 
and called for a series of mock council meetings so people who might find them intimidating 
could get used to them.

Cllr Dine Romero asked who the Forum meeting tonight felt compared to other Council 
meetings.
Luke felt that politics had been kept out of the meeting tonight which was a good thing. The 
room setting is very formal and could be intimidating for those people who are not used to such 
a set up. Luke suggested that if the venue were to be made available for open days which 
would allow barriers to be broken down.
Cllr Dine Romero wondered whether there might be a cost barrier to mock council meetings.

Rosie Phillips suggested that forum members had links in the community and there were other 
ways of reaching out to the community to show them how they can get involved more.

Cllr Colin Blackburn explained 
 The forum wants community member to come along and take part.
 The point of the forum was to make Bath a better place to live and work.  
 Personally he felt he needs to do more to tell his constituents about the work of the 

forum.
 Funding recommendations that we deliver aim to improve the City.
 We need to get better at the way we communicate.

Page 10



Cllr Shaun Stephenson-McGall said it was more difficult to get community engagement in a big 
community like Bath without having parish councils.
Shaun felt that the forum should not beat ourselves up too much over the problems we’re 
facing, it will be difficult to solve the community engagement issues with a small budget.”
Shaun added that Bath has in the past tried other formats, different venues and other 
membership models which have all had issues of their own. There are other places such as 
Bristol and South Gloucestershire, who also struggle with similar issues of engagement,  

Cllr Joe Rayment said there was a lot of talk about people resigning from the forum because it 
was too political. Joe felt that if that’s the case, then issues shouldn’t be sent to the forums that 
are contentious because people are political beings and bring their political beliefs to the table. 
If the forum supports perishing in Bath then we need to have a proper discussion.
Joe added that the diversity is an issue, very few councillors are under forty, very few are full 
time workers and not many have to rent their home.

Jeremy Boss felt that the acid test is what we do. The forum discussions tend to be dominated 
by councillors because they were better informed, but councillors need to keep in mind that 
discussions must suit lay members as well to keep them engaged.

Cllr Colin Blackburn said he would like to see more topics brought to the forum that residents 
are interested in. The scale of how moving to a parished Bath model needs to be explored and 
explained.

Jeremy Boss felt there has been very little appetite in his community for a parished Bath. 

Cllr Blackburn closed the meeting and thanked everyone for attending.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Note of the meeting of the Neighbourhood CIL for Bath and CEF Working Group
held on Monday, 12th March, 2018
in Dome Room  - Guildhall, Bath

In Attendance
Councillor Rob Appleyard
Councillor Colin Blackburn
David Dixon
Roger Driver
Mark Hayward
Robin Kerr
Councillor Lin Patterson
Councillor June Player

Community Empowerment Funding Applications

1.   Sustrans Benches Springfield Park 

Application: To fund two new benches for Springfield Park, Foxhill
Applicant: Vicky Stone - Sustrans

Summary: The Local people Foxhill project has been running in Foxhill since May 2016 with 
the aim of supporting residents to make small changes to their outdoor spaces to benefit the 
whole community. It is funded by The People’s Health Trust who aim to empower local people. 
Residents have highlighted the need for more seating in Springfield Park the money will be 
used to install and maintain two benches for ten years. One bench will be located in the play 
area and the other on an area of higher ground in the centre of the Park next to the basketball 
court. 

Project Cost: £5,631
Funding Requested: £3,754
Matched Funding: £1,877 
Volunteering Hours meet the additional match funding requirements.

Outcome: 
The working group recommends funding of £3,754. 
This will enable the continuation of the work that Sustrans has been carrying  out with the 
community 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



2.   Student Community Partnership 

Application: To fund the partnerships funding shortfall for two years. 
Applicant: Kalyn Mallard - Co-ordinator (Student Community Partnership)

Summary: The Student Community Partnership is an organisation that was set up by Bath & 
North East Somerset Council, The University of Bath and Bath Spa University. Its aims are to 
promote excellent two-way relationships between students and other members of the local 
communities in the Bath & North East Somerset. Funding is used to employ a full-time Co-
ordinator to run the scheme across the city.  Activities include managing student related 
enquiries, promotion of student volunteering in the community, the promotion of recycling 
amongst students, good neighbour campaigns and the use of a small grants budget to promote 
community relations.

Project Cost: £80,314
Funding Requested: £10,000
Matched Funding: £70,314 
In 2017 in excess of 2,400 students have been involved in volunteering activities. Exact 
number of hours is difficult to quantify but they are in the thousands.

Outcome: 
The working group recommends funding of £10,000. 
The work of the partnership brings strong links and benefits to communities and delivered a 
high level on volunteering.

3.   Combe Down Firs Field Shaft Wall Project 

Application: Val Lyon – Creation of a seated area on the Fir Fields Shaft Wall
Applicant: Val Lyon – Combe Down Stone Legacy Trust

Summary: This project involves the excavation and restoration of a section of the historic shaft 
head wall on Firs Field.  This is the only remaining evidence freely available to the public of the 
Ralph Allen Stone Mines from whence came the stone that built Georgian Bath.  The mine 
workings themselves have all been closed and stabilised by in-filling with foamed concrete. 
The project is to uncover approx. 2.5 metres of the curved wall and raise it marginally with 
locally sourced coarse stone topped with Bath stone copings.  These copings will be carved 
along the outer vertical edge with text cut by level 3 student masons from Bath College to 
indicate the significance of the structure.  

Project Cost: £10,000
Funding Requested: £2,000
Matched Funding: £8,000 

Outcome: 
The working group recommends funding of £2,000 on the basis that the matched pledges for 
funding are successful. 
The community will receive a long lasting legacy that has important historical links.

Page 14



4.   Bath Festivals 

Application: Community Engagement through the Bath Festival
Applicant: Ian Stockley – Bath Festivals

Funding Requested: £15,190

Outcome: 
The working group agreed that this project would not receive funding. 
It was felt that the project overall was too broad and the success would be difficult to show how 
local residents have benefited. The festival has revenue from high priced ticket income from 
core events 

5.   Curo Community Researcher Foxhill 

Application: Community Researcher Project Foxhill
Applicant: Vanessa Collier – Curo 

Funding Requested: £2,000

Outcome: 
The working group agreed that this project would not receive funding. 
It was felt that recent announcement by Curo shows significant changes to the   development 
for Foxhill. 

6.   Bath City Football Club School Engagement 

Application: Schools Engagement Programme at Bath City Football Club
Applicant: John Bickley, Director, Bath City Football Club

Summary: The Schools Engagement Programme involves visiting all the city’s primary 
schools, offering free entry to school children and less than half-price entry to accompanying 
adults, for a specific match for that school (we can offer free entry for adults if circumstances 
prevent them being able to pay the £6 discounted entry). 

Project Cost: £4650
Funding Requested: £2,325
Matched Funding: £1425
Volunteering hours complete the matched funding requirements 

Outcome: 
The working group agreed to award funding of £2,325
The offer to young people in the offer of a low cost activity is beneficial as it makes it more 
accessible to engage in activities in the community. 

Page 15



7.   Bath City Football Club Meeting Facilities 

Application: Community Meeting and Co-Working Facilities
Applicant: John Bickley, Director, Bath City Football Club

Summary: Bath City FC wishes to provide casual meeting and hot-desking facilities for local 
charities, not-for-profit organisations and start-up businesses in the walk-to-work Twerton area. 
We have also made an offer to local charities and not-for-profits to have up to four hours of free 
room rental in the main building per week. We’re bidding for funding for the installation of new 
cabling and subscription to high-speed cable broadband that would make this a 21st Century 
offering that would be a real boost to the local community and one which would provide a 
vibrant local hub. Furthermore, access to high speed broadband will allow local residents 
without that provision at home, to complete applications for Universal Credit or apply for jobs.

Project Cost: £9,184
Funding Requested: £2,700
Volunteering and in kind contributions complete the matched funding requirements 

Outcome: 
The working group recommended funding of £2,700.
The improvements to the facilities will help local residents with life choices assists voluntary 
organisations in accessing working space. 

8.   Families for A Bright Future Last Straw Campaign 

Application: Campaign for the reduction in the use of plastic straws
Applicant: Paula Malone – Founder, Families for a Bright Future

Summary: As part of a campaign against plastic straws we free sessions to local schools are 
being offered through school assemblies or class workshops.  Encouragement to cafes, bars 
and restaurants in Bath to replace plastic straws with biodegradable or reusable alternatives, 
the production of window stickers to identify cafes, bars and restaurants that have committed to 
reducing their single use plastic waste by removing plastic straws.  

Project Cost: £1,300.00
Funding Requested: £650.00
Volunteering will match the funding request

Outcome: 
The working group recommends funding of £650.00 subject to agreement from the Councils 
Sustainability Officer.
The education being offered to schools will draw attention to the importance around the use of 
plastic in general. Working with local business to move away from using plastic straws will 
support positive change.

Page 16



9.   Change Makers - Refill Bath 

Application: Increase the interest in Refill Bath
Applicant: Vipul Patel – Project Lead, Refill Bath

Funding Requested: £5,500

Outcome: 
The working group agreed that this project would not receive funding. 
It was felt that the project overall was too broad and explanation around the costs involved did 
not demonstrate a long term value for money project. 

10.   Playing Out - Alexandra Road 

Application: Playing Out – Alexandra Road, Widcombe
Applicant: Jeremy Boss – Chair, Widcombe Association 

Summary: Playing Out temporary road closures provide communities the opportunities to 
spend time together on activities in the street without traffic worries. 

Total Cost of Project £200
Funding Requested: £100
Matched funding of up to £100 from the Widcombe Association

Outcome: 
The working group recommended funding of £100.
This project allows young people the chance to play outside near home. 

Local Neighbourhood CIL Applications for Bath

11.   Updates from January 2018 Meeting 

Application: Speed Calming Signs Oakley, Claverton Down Road
Applicant:  Christopher John Beezley - Chairman of Beech Avenue Residents' Association

Summary: 
The overall project seeks to improve safety for pedestrians, cyclists and motorists at the 
junction of Claverton Down and Oakley roads and on the approaches to the junction. Extensive 
consultation has taken place in the local community following ten accidents on this stretch of 
road since August 2016.
This route has increased traffic usage due to developments at the nearby university and further 
on in Combe Down.

Project Cost: £10,000
Funding Requested: £5,000 (which includes an extended 10 year maintenance period)
Additional Funds: Ward Councillor Support has covered the cost of the other signs that 
were required to meet the overall level of improvements

Outcome: A recommendation of £5,000 has been made for the installation and maintenance 
for this additional sign which completes the overall projects ambitions.

Page 17



12.   Brickfields Park Access 

Application: On-site access to Brickfields
Applicant:  Helen Conner – Relish Running Races 

Summary:
Brickfields Park is a great but underutilised space for the local community, access to this green 
space is required for supporting events in this space in the future.  As the surrounding 
community is growing dramatically in size due to the new developments, green spaces like 
these are increasingly very important and should be looked after to provide the community with 
accessible green spaces and community events.

Project Cost: £5,400
Funding Requested: £4,200
Additional Funds: £1,200 from Relish Running Races

Outcome: The working group recommends that £4,200 be provided to for tarmacking the on-
site access into the park from Shophouse Road.

13.   Alice Park Improvements 

Application: Alice Park Footpaths
Applicant:  Cllr Rob Appleyard 

Summary: 
To join up two sections of pathway totalling 320 metres at Alice Park, to enable users to benefit 
from all areas of the park and to provide a safe circular walk for all, if delivered will proved huge 
improvement to the user experience of the park. The Park will be well used by the new 
residents of the McCarthy & Stone assisted living facility, and the many current users of the 
Park who come from a wider area than just Larkhall. In a recent survey of park users and wider 
participation the lack of suitable pathways around the park was strongly identified.

Project Cost: £43,200
Funding Requested: £43,200

Outcome: Deferred - The panel felt that further information was required on this application 
and decided that it would be reviewed again at the next meeting. 
There were concerns that the scheme could be seen as dangerous if young people cycle 
around the paths.

14.   Bath Area Community Workboat 

Application: Community Workboat 
Applicant:  Mark Evans – Waterways Manager Canal & River Trust

Summary: 
The purchase of a Community Workboat that will manage the Waterways in and around and 
create local volunteering opportunities:

Page 18



 River safety equipment inspection and repair
 Tree felling and vegetation clearance 
 Removing off-side soil and debris
 Painting and repairs to railings/locks
 Removing debris from the towpath
 River mapping
 Graffiti removal 
 Repair and improvements to historic sites 

Project Cost: £40,000
Funding Requested: £28,500
Additional Funds: £12,500 capital already secured. £9,000 per annum running costs is 
secured.

Outcome: The working group recommended funds of £28,500 be provided to fund the 
contribution to this project. A large number of developments in Bath have been located close to 
the river corridor; this project will see valuable improvements to the management of 
infrastructure on the waterways in Bath.

15.   21st Larkhall Scouts 

Application: 21st Larkhall Scouts
Applicant:  Cllr Rob Appleyard  

Summary:
Development in Larkhall and the wider area (particularly at Ensleigh) have created a growing 
family catchment increasing demand for youth development activities alongside formal 
education. The 21st Bath Scout Group are one such activity with reported benefits to mental 
and physical wellbeing from the activities provided. The infrastructure improvements of the 
buildings will add to the viability to bring other users into the site, existing room hire is at 
capacity within the area. The current sub lease for the playschool will be protected with a 
warmer and safer building. There is much local support for this initiative following a successful 
recruitment drive for adult Leaders, ensuring those children on the waiting list can be bought 
into Scouting. 

Project Cost: £31,100
Funding Requested: £19,600
Additional Funds: £11,500 in local donations, fundraising and volunteering has been 
secured. 

Outcome: The working group recommended that funds of £19,600 be provided for the work 
that was outlined in the application. 

Page 19



16.   Project 28 support to young people 

Application: Computer Equipment for the support of vulnerable young people at Project 28
Applicant: Ricarda Todd – Developing Health and Independence 

Summary:
In the past, youth services provided more facilities and activities for marginalised young people 
and the increase in more competition for education, training and employment opportunities has 
increased. This issue is city wide and the project is located in a drop in centre for all Bath 
young people whether they are referred or come with their friends.

Project Cost: £5,915
Funding Requested: £5,915

Outcome: The working group declined the application for funding. It was felt that despite the 
value shown in the proposal which builds on social infrastructure, it was difficult from the 
application to see the links to developments that have added to an increased need. It was 
agreed that feedback would be given to DHI.

17.   Camden Crescent Railings 

Application: Camden Crescent Railings
Applicant: Steve George – Conservation of Camden Crescent Railings  

Funding Requested: £60,000

Outcome: The working group agreed that this project would not receive funding. The 
application did not provide enough detail which linked this project to development in the local 
area. This was an early expression of interest form, the applicant will receive feedback.

18.   Volunteer Canal and River Trust 

Application: Restoration of Abutments through Sydney Gardens
Applicant: Ian Herve - Volunteer Canal and River Trust

Funding Requested: £6,500

Outcome: The working group agreed that this project would not receive funding. The 
application did not provide enough detail which linked this project to development in the local 
area. This was an early expression of interest form, the applicant will receive feedback.

19.   Curo Community Researcher Foxhill 

Application: Community Researcher Project Foxhill
Applicant: Vanessa Collier – Curo 

Funding Requested: £19,130

Outcome: The working group agreed that this project would not receive funding. It was felt that 
recent announcement by Curo shows significant changes to the development for Foxhill.

Page 20



Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes and matters arising from the meeting on 17.01.18
	3 Funding recommendations from CIL and CEF

